
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Town of Mineral Springs  

Mineral Springs Town Hall 

3506 Potter Road S ~ Mineral Springs 

Mineral Springs Town Council 

Public Hearing / Regular Meeting  

September 14, 2023 ~ 7:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Opening  
 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of Allegiance will 
be recited.    

 

2. Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-02 and TA-2023-03) 
 

3. Public Comments 
 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest to them 
during this ten-minute period.  
 

4. Consent Agenda – Action Item 
 

A. Approval of the August 10, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. Acceptance of the July 2023 Union County Tax Report  
C. Acceptance of the July 2023 Finance Report 
 

5. Consideration of Initiating a Voluntary Annexation – Action Item  
 

The council will consider R-2023-02 directing the clerk to evaluate a voluntary annexation petition 
from Waxhaw Meadows Plantation. 
 

6. Consideration of Adopting a Resolution on the Waxhaw Parkway – Action Item 
 

The council will consider R-2023-03 concerning the Waxhaw Parkway CTP amendment. 
 

7. Consideration of Adopting a Statement of Consistency and/or Inconsistency and 
Ordinance-2023-02 on the Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-02 and TA-2023-03) 
– Action Item  
 

The council will consider adopting the Statement of Consistency and/or Inconsistency and O-2023-
02 on the proposed text amendments (TA-2023-02 and TA-2023-03).     
 

8. 2023 Property Tax Order of Collection – Action Item  
 

The council will consider approving the Union County Order of Collection for the 2023 taxes. 
 

9. Consideration of Adopting a Resolution Adopting the Union County Emergency 
Operations Plan – Action Item   

The council will consider R-2023-04 approving and adopting the Union County Emergency 
Operations Plan. 
 

10. Mineral Springs 7th Annual Festival Wrap Up  
 

The festival director will provide a wrap up report to the council on Mineral Springs 7th Annual 
Festival.   
 

11. Staff Updates    

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town.  
  
12. Other Business 

 

13. Adjournment 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 4 

 

Draft Minutes of the  
Mineral Springs Town Council  

Public Hearing / Regular Meeting  
August 10, 2023 – 7:30 p.m.  

 
The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Regular Session at the Mineral 
Springs Town Hall located at 3506 Potter Road S, Mineral Springs, North Carolina, at 7:30 p.m. on 
Thursday, August 10, 2023. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Mayor Pro Tem Jerry Countryman, Councilwoman Valerie 

Coffey, Councilwoman Janet Critz, Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton, Councilwoman 
Bettylyn Krafft, and Councilman Jim Muller.  

 
Absent: None.   
 
Staff Present: Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks, Administrative Assistant/Deputy 

Town Clerk Sharelle Quick and Attorney Bobby Griffin. 
 
Visitors: None.  
 
1. Opening 

With a quorum present at 7:30 p.m. on August 10, 2023, Mayor Becker called the meeting to order.  

 Councilwoman Critz delivered the invocation. 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Public Hearing – Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-01) 

 Mayor Becker opened the Public Hearing on the Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-01) at 7:31 
p.m. 

 There were no public comments. 

 Mayor Becker closed the Public Hearing on the Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-01) at 7:31 
p.m. 

3. Public Comments 

 None.  

4. Consent Agenda – Action Item 

Councilwoman Critz motioned to approve the consent agenda containing the July 13, 2023 Regular 
Meeting Minutes, the June 2023 Union County Tax Report, the June 2023 Finance Report, and the 
Union County Tax Settlement and Councilwoman Krafft seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

Mayor Becker took the opportunity to remind the council to see if they could help clerical 
personnel/transcriptionist by trying to not talk over each other.  Mayor Becker noted that it was up 
to him to help call on people, but if the council could talk one at a time, because it has been getting 
difficult for the personnel to transcribe the meeting audio for the minutes. 

5. Consideration of Adopting a Statement of Consistency and Ordinance-2023-01 on the 
Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-01) – Action Item  

Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks notified the council that the proposed text amendments (TA-
2023-01) were duly advertised in the Enquirer-Journal and the notification was posted on the bulletin 
board and the website.  The planning board spent many months reviewing each article of the 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 5 

 

Development Ordinance and they have recommended the town council adopt the proposed text 
amendments (included in the agenda packet), which included a statement of reasonableness and 
consistency.    

Ms. Brooks presented the proposed text amendments (TA-2023-01) to the council: 

 Several of the proposed text amendments were to make the ordinance clear and concise.  In 
some cases, it was to correct the wording of what it currently was, for example, a development 
ordinance instead of a subdivision ordinance. 

 One of the bigger corrections was the two sections in Article 5 (5.3.4.7.2 and 5.3.4.8), where 
some time back corrections were made covering dedication, ownership, and maintenance of 
land for certain developments in an effort to put it back where it was in the previous ordinance, 
but somehow in making the corrections another section that duplicated it was not removed. 

 A large portion of the proposed text amendments was to allow food trucks in the TC, NB, GB, 
LI, and MU zoning districts, along with the regulations that went with the food trucks.  

 There were some proposed text amendments that went along with nonconforming structures 
that would allow a residential structure to increase in size by more than the stated 25% and 
would not require the property owner to apply for a certificate of nonconformity adjustment, as 
long as the increase did not increase the nonconformity for setbacks, heights, or dimensions.  
Ms. Brooks explained the reason she proposed this text amendment to the planning board 
was because there was a resident that came in with a 900 square foot house, which existed 
when the town took over zoning, the issue was that the front setback was not right, which 
made it a nonconforming structure and that meant this person would have to follow that 25% 
guideline.  On a 900 square foot house, the resident could only add 225 square feet or 
approximately 12 X 19 addition.  Only the front setback on the property was nonconforming, 
there was room in the back and on the sides.  It seemed unfair to only allow that to be 25%. 

Councilwoman Critz asked if the setbacks were the only determining factor. 

Ms. Brooks responded it was the setbacks, heights, and dimensions.  Ms. Brooks clarified that the 
language was only referring to residential, it was not for nonresidential properties.  Ms. Brooks noted 
she did not know how many other residential properties were in this situation. 

Councilman Muller asked if there was a reason to no longer require going for a certificate of 
nonconformity adjustment. 

Ms. Brooks responded it was a process and it was $150 that had to go before the board of 
adjustment.  Ms. Brooks asked if she saw that it met the requirements of the ordinance, was there 
a reason to make them go through the process? 

Councilman Muller responded no; he sees that. 

It was clarified that the council could pull one of the proposed text amendments out or amend one 
if they wanted to. 

Councilwoman Coffey commented it made it a lot of sense to keep things less complicated and Ms. 
Brooks knows the ordinance and zonings and can make the distinction without having to send 
someone to the board of adjustment; she has shown that she is levelheaded and refers back to 
what the town operates under, and she can handle it.  

Mayor Becker mentioned that he had followed a little bit with Ms. Brooks on the two substantive 
amendments, which are policy changes.  



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 6 

 

 With the expansion of activities downtown, food trucks that are meeting the specific criteria would 
be an asset, and for somebody who has a small house and a big lot and would love to have more 
room for their family it would be great to see a smile on their face when they came in.  

Ms. Brooks shared that this person came in the other day and was told she should hold off just in 
case this amendment passed tonight.  If the council could have seen her face was incredible, she 
was so happy. 

Councilwoman Critz commented the council’s goal was to assist and protect the community. 

Ms. Brooks pointed out that the council had an option to read over the statement of consistency, 
which is based on the comprehensive plan.  The council can adopt the statement of consistency 
and the ordinance to amend the text in a simple motion or they can adopt the statement of 
consistency itself and then adopt the ordinance that was amending the text of the development 
ordinance. 

Councilwoman Coffey motioned to adopt the statement of consistency and the accompanying 
ordinance (O-2023-01) and Councilman Muller seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: 
Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Muller.  Nays: None. 

The statement of consistency is as follows: 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY  

 
Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   

Articles 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, & 9  
 

In reference to the proposed text amendments to Articles 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, & 9 of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, as described 
in TA-2023-01. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendments are “consistent” with the Mineral Springs 
Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 2022 based on: 
 

1. The amendments to Sections 4.3.3, 4.4.8.5 (I), and to Article 9 (Definitions) identifies with enhancing the Quality of Life by 
offering the opportunity of an additional service in the commercial zoning districts; 

2. The amendments to Sections 3.3.6, 5.3.4.7.2, 5.3.4.8, 5.4.12.2 (D), 5.6.3.1 (C), 5.6.7.1 (B), 7.4.1, 8.2 (A), and Article 9 
(Definitions) identifies with enhancing town services by maintaining the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance as a clear 
and concise document; and 

3. The amendments to Sections 6.4.6 (B), Article 7 (Table 7.1), 8.4.1 (A), 8.4.1 (C), 8.4.3, and Article 9 (Definitions) identifies with 
the Quality of Life by offering enhanced options for commercial design, services, and improvements to existing structures.  

 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 10th day of August, 2023. 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

Attest: 

       
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 

O-2023-01 is as follows: 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF ARTICLES 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, & 9 OF THE MINERAL SPRINGS 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

O-2023-01 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs maintains an ordinance concerning numerous development regulations; and 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 7 

 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statutes 160D-601; 160D-604, and Article 3, Section 3.10.1 of the Mineral Springs Development 
Ordinance, the Mineral Springs Town Council may amend its development regulations after holding a public hearing and after the 
Mineral Springs Planning Board has had the opportunity to review, comment, and make a recommendation to the Town Council 
regarding the amendment as well as whether the same is consistent with any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and any 
other officially adopted plan that is applicable; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board reviewed the proposed amendments at a regular meeting on June 27, 2023, held in 
accordance with law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board recommended in a vote of 6 to 0 on June 27, 2023, that the Mineral Springs Town 
Council adopt the proposed amendments based on Goals One and Three of the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with NC General Statute 160D-601 and the provisions set forth in Article 3, Section 3.10.1 of the Mineral 
Springs Development Ordinance, the Town Council duly advertised and held a public hearing to consider the proposed amendments; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the written recommendation of the Mineral Springs Planning Board, the proposed amendments, conducting 
a public hearing on August 10, 2023, and careful review, the Town Council determines that: 

 
4. The amendments to Sections 4.3.3, 4.4.8.5 (I), and to Article 9 (Definitions) identifies with enhancing the Quality of Life by offering 

the opportunity of an additional service in the commercial zoning districts; 
 

5. The amendments to Sections 3.3.6 (10), 5.2.2, 5.3.4.7.2, 5.3.4.8, 5.4.12.2 (D), 5.6.3.1 (C), 5.6.7.1 (B), 7.4.1, 8.2 (A), and Article 9 
(Definitions) identifies with enhancing town services by maintaining the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance as a clear and 
concise document; and 

 
6. The amendments to Sections 5.2.5.4 (A), 6.4.6 (B), Article 7 (Table 7.1), 8.4.1 (A), 8.4.1 (C), 8.4.3, and Article 9 (Definitions) 

identifies with the Quality of Life by offering enhanced options for commercial design, services, and improvements to existing 
structures.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH CAROLINA THAT: 
Section 1. That this Town Council does hereby adopt the proposed amendments as outlined in TA-2023-01 attached hereto. 
 
Section 2. That if any section, subsection, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, held to be invalid, such decision 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance; and 
 
Section 3.  That all ordinances and clauses of ordinance in conflict herewith be and are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 
 
Section 4. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
 
ADOPTED this 10th day of August, 2023. 
 

              
       Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
        
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 
 

TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
TA-2023-01

Article Section # Subsection # Current Language Amendment 
4 4.3.3 Table of Uses None Add Mobile Food Vending Units (Food 

Trucks) as a Permitted Use in TC, NB, 
GB, LI, & MU with Supplemental 
Regulations in 4.4.8.5 

4 4.4.8.5 Addition of (I)  None See Exhibit 1 for details on the addition of 
Section 4.4.8.5 I 

9 Definitions   Add the definition for: Mobile Food 
Vending Units (Food Trucks).  A licensed, 
motorized vehicle or mobile food unit 
licensed by the North Carolina State 
Division of Motor Vehicles, designed, and 
equipped to serve food and beverages.  
Food trucks are permitted on lots in the 
GB, NB, LI, TC, and Conditional Zoning 
Districts that maintain commercial or 
industrial uses. 

3 3.3.6 Step 10 - #16 …Mineral Springs Subdivision 
Ordinance…

…Mineral Springs Development 
Ordinance… 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 8 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

STRIKE-THROUGH = DELETIONS 

RED PRINT = ADDITIONS 

 

ARTICLE 4 

4.4.8.5 TEMPORARY USES (ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL) 
 
Add the following: 
 
I. Mobile Food Vending Units (Food Trucks) are defined as a licensed, motorized vehicle or mobile food unit licensed by the North 

Carolina State Division of Motor Vehicles, designed, and equipped to serve food and beverages.  Food trucks are permitted on lots 
in the GB, NB, LI, TC, and Conditional Zoning Districts that maintain commercial or industrial uses subject to the following standards. 

 
 1. Must be located on a property in one (1) of the above zoning districts and the property must have a primary use.  An example 

of a primary use would be a building with an active use or an improved stand-alone parking lot.  An unimproved grass or dirt 
lot is not a primary use. 

 2. Must be located on private property with written permission from the property owner. 
 3. The property must have an off-street parking area with a minimum of 10 parking spaces. 
 4. Vendor must obtain all required permits from Union County Health Department.  

TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
TA-2023-01

Article Section # Subsection # Current Language Amendment 
5 5.2.2  …the adopted Mineral Springs Land 

Use Plan…
…the adopted Mineral Springs 
Comprehensive Plan… 

5 5.3.4.7.2  Dedication, 
Ownership, and 
Maintenance for all 
Other Developments

 Omit the entire Section 

5 5.3.4.8 Alternatives to 
Dedication 

 Omit the entire Section 

5 5.4.12.2 D …may extend up to one (1) feet… …may extend up to one (1) foot…
5 5.6.3.1 C (1) first and 

second sentence 
…either the Town or NCDOT… …the NCDOT…. 

5 5.6.7.1  B …the Town of Mineral Springs 
Zoning Ordinance or Subdivision 
Ordinance…

…the Town of Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance… 

7 7.4.1  A permanent sign that is affixed to a 
building wall, window (larger than 
one square foot), canopy…

A permanent sign that is affixed to a 
building wall (larger that one square foot), 
window, canopy… 

8 8.2 A – second and third 
sentences 

…not in violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance or Subdivision 
Ordinance...

…not in violation of the Development 
Ordinance… 

9 Definitions Street, Public …eligible for maintenance by either 
the Town of Mineral Springs or the 
State of North Carolina.

…eligible for maintenance by the State of 
North Carolina. 

5 5.2.5.4 A …part of the sketch plan phase, an 
optional pre-planning site visit…

…part of the sketch plan phase, a pre-
planning site visit… 

6 6.4.6 B Pitched roof materials shall consist 
of asphalt shingles or standing 
seam metal…

Pitched roof materials shall consist of 
asphalt shingles, standing seam metal, or 
slate….

7 Table 7.1  Max Duration for a Type 2 
Temporary Freestanding Sign = 7 
days up to 6 times per calendar 
year

Max Duration for a Type 2 Temporary 
Freestanding Sign = 14 days up to 6 times 
per calendar year 

8 8.4.1 A – first and second 
sentence 

A nonconforming structure may not 
be…

A non-residential nonconforming 
structure may not be… 

8 8.4.1 A Add after last sentence. A residential structure may expand so long 
as there is no increase to the 
nonconformity (i.e., setbacks, height, 
dimensions, etc.) within the restrictions of 
Section 8.4.1 and Section 8.4.2.

8 8.4.1 C When any nonconforming structure 
is damaged…

When a nonconforming (non-residential 
or residential) structure is damaged…

8 8.4.3   Omit the last sentence.  A 
nonconforming manufactured home 
may not be enlarged or altered 
externally in any way. 

9 Definitions Bed and Breakfast 
Inn 

…with the assistance of not more 
than the equivalent of one (1) full-
time employee.

…with the assistance of not more than 
the equivalent of two (2) full-time 
employees.  



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 9 

 

 5. Not allowed within fifty (50) feet from the main entrance of any restaurant or outdoor dining area. 
 6. Not allowed less than five (5) feet from driveways, sidewalks, utility boxes, handicap ramps, building entrances or exits, or 

emergency call boxes. 
 7. The minimum distance requirements are measured in a straight line from the closest point of the proposed food truck location 

to the closest point of the buffered object, or in the case of a restaurant, measured from the closest point of the restaurant’s 
main entrance. 

 8. A minimum of five (5) parking spaces are required for each additional food truck and mobile vendor that wishes to locate on 
private property. 

 9. There shall not be any connections to public utilities. 
 10. “Drive-through” sales are not permitted. 
 11. The hours of operation, including set-up/break-down, shall be from 7:00 a.m. to 10:30 p.m. 
 12. There shall be no audio amplifier or similar device to attract the attention of the public. 
 13. Food truck vendors are responsible for the proper disposal of waste and trash associated with the operations.  Vendors shall 

remove all waste and trash from their location at the end of each day or as needed to maintain the health and safety to the 
public.  The vendor must keep all areas within ten (10) feet of the truck clean of grease, trash, paper, cups, or cans associated 
with the vending operation.  No liquid waste or grease is to be disposed of in tree pits, storm drains, or onto sidewalks, streets, 
or other public places. 

 14. Advertising consisting of business name, logo, and items available for sale may be displayed on the food truck.  One (1) 
portable menu sign no more than six (6) square feet in display area on the ground no further than ten (10 feet from the truck. 

 15. Food trucks are allowed at permitted special events and on active construction sites. 

6. 2023 Festival Update and Town Tent Sign Up  

 Ms. Brooks updated the council on the festival: there is one $500 anonymous sponsor; four $250 
sponsors; two $50 sponsors; three food vendors (bar-b-que/hot dogs, Pelican’s Snoballs, and the 
Donut Shack); seven craft vendors; three exhibitors; the Aerial View Band; a bounce house, a 
balloon twister; and four gift donations for the hourly prize give-a-ways.  Ms. Brooks explained they 
were still working on getting the field mowed for the parking and the newsletter should be going out 
toward the end of the month. 

Councilwoman Krafft mentioned that the feed store and Stonebridge were going to donate prize 
give-a-ways. 

The council volunteered for time slots at the town tent:  

  Councilwoman Coffey – 10:00 a.m. to 11:15 a.m.  

  Councilwoman Critz – 11:15 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. 

  Councilman Muller – 12:30 p.m. to 1:45 p.m. 

  Councilman Countryman – 1:45 to 3:00 p.m.  

  Councilwoman Cureton – 3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

Ms. Diane Countryman will be at the town tent while the council is being introduced. 

Councilwoman Krafft will be doing the children’s area. 

Councilwoman Coffey volunteered to help at the children’s area.  

Mayor Becker expected to be on the stage, but while the band was playing, he could do a stint in 
the tent if needed.  

Councilwoman Krafft needed six small tents for the children’s area, and she would be bringing one 
of them. 

Mayor Becker will take charge of making sure there are six tents available. 

Mayor Becker mentioned phone calls could be made independently for volunteers to get the stage 
and tent set up the week before the festival.   

7. Staff Updates 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 10 

 

 Ms. Brooks explained that she did not generally bring zoning violations before the council, but there 
was one in particular the council needs to know about.  There is an event center in the Town of 
Mineral Springs, which received a Special Use Permit as a recreational facility, private, as a 
residential accessory structure.  It received a zoning permit as an accessory structure and it received 
a building permit [from Union County] for a residential structure, accessory.  It has now become a 
full-fledged event center.  The event center is located at 5130 Lee Massey Road.  The property 
owner is in violation of the Special Use Permit and the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance.  A 
letter has been sent to the property owner asking him to stop any of the unapproved activities, which 
involves him working with the Waxhaw Athletic Association (volleyball games are going on at the 
center).  Additionally, this is where the pilot program [Social, Emotional, Readiness] is taking place.  
Mr. Coffey has been informed that he needs to stop the school, because that is another use from 
what he was permitted for.  The activities that are taking place are of a commercial nature and the 
building is not in compliance with the Union County Fire Marshal, Union County Building Inspections, 
or Union County Environmental Health. 

 Ms. Brooks explained the reason she brought this to the council’s attention was because the pilot 
program would be starting their fall semester September 6th, which was before the next council 
meeting, and she would leave it up the council whether they wanted to continue funding it while the 
building they were using was not up to code.  

Councilwoman Critz commented she did not think the council could do that ethically. 

Mayor Becker commented he was the liaison with Dr. Coffey, and he had not spoken with her yet.  
Mayor Becker stated he was hoping to work with Ms. Brooks on it, because the afterschool program 
is something very small, but it is not small enough when the county says the building doesn’t meet 
life safety rules for children to be in there.  As earlier stated, Mayor Becker has not spoken with Dr. 
Coffey to see if she could get alternative arrangements, because she was getting that facility without 
a rental charge and was able to keep her costs lower, so he did not have anything from Dr. Coffey 
to tell the council.  Mayor Becker stated he was very upset, because he championed the program 
and he did not know where it was going to go, but it was out of the council’s hands.  Mayor Becker 
explained he was supposed to write a check to them for the next installment as of September 1st, 
but he did not think the town could do that unless the issue was resolved, and they could find a 
place.  Maybe they could work with the school, but in theory they would have to have insurance and 
pay a nominal fee to use school facilities.  Mayor Becker explained the town had a contract with the 
D. Coffey Foundation to continue issuing the check as long as they have a facility to work at, so he 
will work with her and try to get something, but he could only issue a check if and only if they can 
start meeting.  There was a problem with scheduling last April and they started a month late, but it 
was able to work.  Mayor Becker stated he just wanted to let the council know there could be a delay 
and to say, “we can’t put children in the building if the county is saying this doesn’t meet code.” 

Ms. Brooks mentioned there is a meeting scheduled on August 28th with the Deputy Fire Marshal, 
Union County Building Inspections, Union County Environmental Health, Mr. Coffey, and herself to 
discuss the matter.  Ms. Brooks noted the reason this came up was because Mr. Coffey applied for 
an ABC license and the county started doing their inspections for that.  

Councilwoman Critz asked if the town didn’t know any of this. 

Ms. Brooks responded, no, they had no idea, this was a personal structure for his personal use, not 
commercial.  Ms. Brooks reported that the fire marshal did go out there and every category listed 
failed, so there was nothing in the building that met any kind of fire code. 

Councilwoman Coffey commented that it was imperative that Mayor Becker speak with Dr. Coffey 
at once, because she needs to let these families know, so they won’t expect that. 

Mayor Becker responded he would speak with Dr. Coffey tomorrow.  



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 11 

 

Councilwoman Critz mentioned there were two problems for the council, it is a violation issue and 
an ethical issue as far as the town can’t be seen funding something they know is taking place in a… 

Mayor Becker added, “in a building that doesn’t meet county life safety codes.” 

Councilwoman Coffey stated, “that’s a moot point, I think you already decided no money is leaving.” 

Ms. Brooks pointed out that the zoning violation was not on the council.  

Mayor Becker commented if somehow everything worked out…  The problem is the board of 
adjustment, if the county (in the very short term), Dr. Coffey, and Mr. Coffey could satisfy the code, 
but the board of adjustment is the only board that could modify or weigh-in on the Special Use 
Permit as a modification, which takes months.   

Mayor Becker explained the council approved the program and they were just concerned about the 
program meeting its criteria and the funding was accounted for.  The council didn’t give the Special 
Use Permit, that was the board of adjustment, which is quite separate, and it seemed that the use 
didn’t raise red flags, because it was a very small, limited use, but the reality is that the use is not in 
compliance with the Special Use Permit and the volleyball using it as the headquarters is an even 
bigger problem.  Mayor Becker stated he would talk to Dr. Coffey tomorrow to see if he could help 
guide her into working something out, but right now it is a difficult situation and people have to 
understand.  Mayor Becker explained what he was alluding to was the council did not have the 
authority to overrule Ms. Brooks from the notice of violation standpoint or the board of adjustment 
from what the permit is, because they are an independent entities.  Ms. Brooks is an independent 
staff, and the board of adjustment is an independent binding board, the council/mayor can’t give 
permission, because they don’t have that authority.  

Councilwoman Cureton mentioned her neighborhood has a problem with the traffic and everyone 
was going to her and saying, “Lundeen do something about it, you’re on the town council, the traffic 
is awful.”  Councilwoman Cureton stated they had a man out there now that is getting paid to direct 
the traffic; the traffic is terrible.  Councilwoman Cureton commented she had been to the program 
and enjoyed the kids and the people, but the traffic was terrible. 

Councilwoman Coffey commented the council had heard an awful lot about traffic and it started at 
the board of adjustment, so she thought the council was very aware of that; it is paramount on the 
community’s mind.  With that being said, Councilwoman Coffey asked (from her heart) Mayor 
Becker, “let us please be guarded in how we try to direct and help people, their organizations.”   

Mayor Becker went on record saying, “you are reading my mind, I said to Vicky and to Jim this 
afternoon, I said let this be a lesson to me, who is an idealist to this day, we don’t have, we’re not a 
town that is big enough, that has enough staff to be able to do, to oversee, and to take on these 
type of, of things, like the, I mean these are two separate things here as you know, there’s the other 
uses that we have nothing to do with, but there’s the one that we funded and I certainly encouraged 
it heavily and I don’t’, I would recommend that we not, that we just say this is not something we can 
do, we can’t do these things, we want to help, but we don’t have the wherewithal to identify all the 
moving parts and all the needs and all the follow up and so I, so you were reading my mind because 
I was saying this morning, I said, I feel horrible because I didn’t necessarily know and nobody knew, 
I mean there were too many things that could go wrong, and things have gone wrong and if we’re 
not going to fund these types of programs, which we have never done before, we’re not geared to 
it, we don’t have, we don’t have a human services staff, you know, so I think you’re right about that 
Valerie and I will be very conscious, and I will hope the board will, will work with me on that, this 
board.” 

Councilwoman Critz stated, “I agree with Valerie and I agree with Rick, we bit off something here 
for the first time and I’m not sure it means that we should never do it again, I just think that it certainly 
means that we have got to be more conscientious, but it is a program that is an asset to the 
community as whole and I do believe if they could find somewhere else to meet, but we can’t let the 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 12 

 

ball drop not only on the money side of it from us, which we have more responsibility,  you know we 
have a moral and ethical responsibility for, then with Vicky to follow up on all the other things, which 
could be a problem for other people and we don’t want to sit back mute and let that happen.  Umm, 
at the same time, I think there are a lot of people in the community that are trying to do good, to pay 
attention to that conscientiously, but umm that is really all I wanted to say.” 

Mayor Becker stated he would only address talking to Dr. Coffey about the town’s role in the funding 
and overseeing the program that he still supports and to see if he could support her in making it 
move forward.  The technical matters will be handled by Ms. Brooks, the county staff, and the board 
of adjustment.  

Councilwoman Krafft asked from now until the meeting on the 28th what was going to be transpired 
in the private entity that is now being operated more publicly.  Do they have a cease…?   

Ms. Brooks responded that they do not.  If a complaint is filed with the fire marshal because of an 
event taking place, he would go out there and shut them down. 

It was noted that the violation is on a commercial basis and not a residential one.  

Councilwoman Critz asked if the fire marshal had already been there and this was already noted, 
could he not put a cease and desist on those kinds of activities, but it could still be used for 
residential. 

Ms. Brooks responded the fire marshal would have to see it going on and there was nothing going 
on when he did his inspection.      

Attorney Griffin suggested that Ms. Brooks made her report and that was all she needed to do, but 
the council does not have any authority over it, so they should let her do independently as the official 
with the board of adjustment.  The county has an obligation, the council can call them and ask them, 
because Ms. Brooks can’t speak for the fire marshal legally.  Ms. Brooks has made her report to 
what she had seen.  If the council wishes for funds to be withheld until the kids are in a code safety 
place, they can speak to that, but the others are extraneous and are for an “after the meeting” kind 
of conversation, because the council does not have authority over the board of adjustment or to try 
to influence them at this point in time or the county officials and what they do.  “Let them do and 
then you ask some questions, she’s made her report to you that there may be violations out there 
from the county’s perspective and perhaps the issues that she has raised”, Attorney Griffin stated. 

Councilwoman Critz asked if Attorney Griffin was recommending if there was an activity that 
someone does report it. 

Attorney Griffin responded, “if you wish, as an individual.” 

Mayor Becker noted he looked at the contract and it didn’t specify the place, so he could handle that 
part.  

8. Other Business 

Mayor Becker pointed out the memo from the Union County Emergency Services he handed out 
and explained the town adopted the most recent County Emergency Plan five to eight years ago 
and there are some updates to the plan.  Mayor Becker was not able to get the cooperating 
resolution on this agenda, but it will be on next month’s agenda. 

Councilman Muller announced that this week the Chairman of the Union County Board of 
Commissioners (Stoney Rushing) passed away and asked that the council please keep his family 
their thoughts.   

9. Adjournment – Action Item 



 

August 10, 2023 - DRAFT 
  

Minutes Book 25 Page | 13 

 

 At 8:10 p.m. Councilwoman Coffey motioned to adjourn the meeting and Councilwoman Cureton 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.  Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and 
Muller.  Nays: None.   

 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, September 14, 2023 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mineral 
Springs Town Hall.  

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 

             
  Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk  Frederick Becker III, Mayor   



msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Agenda Item

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
# 

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
9/14/23

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle

























































































MEMO 

 

To:  Mineral Springs Town Council 

From:  Rick Becker 

Date:  August 31, 2023 

Subject: CTP Amendment for Waxhaw Parkway 

 

As we discussed during the May 11, 2023 town council meeting, NCDOT and CRTPO are considering a 

new Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) alignment for the Waxhaw Parkway. The current route 

had been moved closer to Mineral Springs in 2017 with little public notice; that route comes very close 

to the Forest Green and Saddlewood subdivisions in Mineral Springs, cuts through what had been the 

Story Book Farm in the Waxhaw Meadows Plantation subdivision off of Collins Road, and intersects 

Highway 75 at Collins Road.  

 

In late 2021, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) initiated a new study to 

evaluate alternative routes for the leg of the Waxhaw Parkway between Highway 16 in Waxhaw (near 

the Farmers’ Market) and Highway 75. After several meetings involving Waxhaw, Union County, 

Mineral Springs, and NCDOT, a preferred new alignment was agreed upon. The Mineral Springs Town 

Council adopted a resolution supporting Union County in initiating this change in the CTP through 

CRTPO, and also supported initiating a change in the route of the southeastern leg to line up with the 

proposed new route for the northeastern leg. The first map (which was included in the May 11 agenda 

packet) immediately following this memo shows the current CTP alignment of the northeastern leg in 

yellow and the proposed alignment in red; the second map includes the proposed change in the 

alignment of the southeastern leg. 

 

As part of the public input process, Union County sent out postcards to property owners near both of the 

alignments and created a survey which was available on the Union County website. The survey, which 

included space for public comments, ran from July 20 through August 20, 2023. Various other social 

media platforms had links to the survey, and an informational meeting was held at the Waxhaw Police 

Department on August 3, 2023. A total of 409 people participated in the survey. Full survey results are 

available at https://arcg.is/uvGub0. 

 

I have included responses to the two most relevant questions (“Is the proposed new route an 

improvement?” and “Do you want the Waxhaw Parkway to be built?”) from three different groups after 

the first two maps: first, all 409 participants; second, Mineral Springs residents only (14 participants); 

finally, Mineral Springs and unincorporated Union County residents (76 participants).  

 

Based on the survey results and other factors that are presented after the discussion of those results 

(primarily that it appears that the Waxhaw Parkway would facilitate and catalyze SO much ultra-high-

density new development south of NC Highway 75 extending miles into the rural countryside that the 

new development would create more traffic problems than the Parkway would ameliorate), I am 

recommending that the Mineral Springs Town Council adopt a resolution taking a neutral position on 

the two different CTP routes for the Waxhaw Parkway, and further requesting that CRTPO and NCDOT 

consider eliminating the northeastern and southeastern legs of the Waxhaw Parkway from the CTP and 

instead consider alternative strategies such as targeted widening of existing roads, modification of traffic 

flow patterns, and encouraging the dispersal of existing traffic over a wider area. 

 

Agenda Item 

# ___ 
  9/14/23 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 1 of 17



Proposed 
Amendment #1
• New alignment is 

approximately 2,000 
feet west of current 
CTP alignment 

• Current alignment 
goes through 
Waxhaw Meadows 
Plantation and 
came close to 
several Mineral 
Springs subdivisions

• New alignment is 
close to the one we 
preferred in 2018

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 2 of 17



Proposed 
Amendment #2 
(Southern Leg)

• Shift existing CTP 
alignment (orange) 
to new alignment 
(green)

• Requested by 
Waxhaw to 
continue corridor 
south of NC 75

• Does not affect 
Mineral Springs 
neighborhoods

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 3 of 17



2003 Waxhaw Parkway Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

Amendment: Survey Results 

 
All Participants 

 

A total of 409 residents and property owners responded to the survey Union County conducted. 

Notice that Waxhaw dominated the responses with 258 compared to 14 from Mineral Springs, 62 

from unincorporated Union County, and 75 from everywhere else.  

 

The overall result showed a fairly strong preference for the proposed new route (205 agree or 

strongly agree and 130 disagree or strongly disagree), and also a strong preference to build the 

Parkway (236 agree or strongly agree and 131 disagree or strongly disagree). While that is a 

pretty wide margin, it is still slightly surprising that there isn’t even MORE desire to build the 

Parkway since it is being promoted as a “solution” to existing traffic problems within Waxhaw. 

 

 

Mineral Springs Residents Only 

 

Only 14 Mineral Springs residents responded, so that’s not really a large enough sample to be 

conclusive. Notice that the preference was exactly split 6 – 6 between the existing route and the 

proposed new route with two “neutrals”. But when it came to preference to build the Parkway, 

Mineral Springs residents were clearly opposed to it by a margin of 8 – 4 with two “neutrals”. 

 

 

Mineral Springs & Unincorporated Union County 

 

This group is a fairly good representation, and with 76 participants it’s a bit more conclusive. 

With this group, there was a SLIGHT preference for the proposed new alignment over the 

existing alignment (34 to 33) with a slightly greater opposition to building the Parkway (35 to 

33). 

 

 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 4 of 17



������������	�
��������
����������
�����
�������	�������������

����� �!"#!#� $�% &�"#'� �(%�)*!"#+ * %�,

�����
��-��./��0������-�12

�

1��

12�

2�

0�

�
�3
��
��
��
�3
444

5
��
�3

�
�

6
�7
�
�
�

�3

�
�

0�

�
�3
��
��
3

��

0�
��3�������3
�� 1�8 �9419:

5���3
�� �� 249�:

6�7�
�� 2. 1/4/�:

�3
�� ;� 1.429:

0�
��3����3
�� 1�2 ��429:

<#�=#'�&(%���� �>(?�(&�@("A&(=��#�B �B')C�,

D%�& "� E#'%� @ "F %�(G 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 5 of 17

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
ALL Responses (total 409)



����������	
������������




�



��


�



�


����������������� �������� ������� ����� ��������������

����������������� �
� ������

�������� �� �� !�

�������  � !����

����� �� �����

�������������� ��	 	
���

"#$%#&$'()*$(+$,$-&+(.(/,'(0%1




�



 



�



2
�3
4�
�

5
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

6
��
�7
��
��
��
��
��
��

5
��
8�
�

2
��
��
��
��
�

2
��
��
��
9
4�
��
�

��
��
���
��

:�
��
��
�;
��
��

<
�=
>�
�?
���
��

@�
�
�A
��


5
��
��
�

B�
��8
��
�

6
��
��
8�
���

5
��
�4
8�
���

2
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
�8
��
��
���

C+DE*FD G#&+0 H*F.*+0,I*

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 6 of 17



����������	
������������

������ ��� ���
��

��������������� �	 ��	��

���� !��!��"������!��#!$�"% �� ������

���&�� 	 
�'��

�������"!� � �����

�����%�#����� 	 
�'��

�"������� � 
��	�

(������)���� 	 
�'��

*�+,%�-����� 
 
�

.���/�� 
 
�

�!��!� �� ��'��

0���&��� 
 
�

���!�&���� � 
�	'�

�����&���� � 
��	�

�����"� 
 
�

1!��!"���&��������!��#!$�"% �� ��'��

2345674 89:3; <67=63;>?6

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 7 of 17



������������	�
��������
����������
�����
�������	�������������

����� �!"#!#� $�% &�"#'� �(%�)*!"#+ * %�,

�����
��-�./��0������-��

1

�

/

�

0�

�
�2
��
��
��
�2
333

4
��
�2

�
�

5
�6
�
�
�

�2

�
�

0�

�
�2
��
��
2

��

0�
��2�������2
�� 1 /�3718

4���2
�� � �8

5�6�
�� � ./3�98

�2
�� � �8

0�
��2����2
�� 1 /�3718

:#�;#'�&(%���� �<(=�(&�>("?&(;��#�@ �@')A�,

B%�& "� C#'%� > "D %�(E 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 8 of 17

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Mineral Springs Responses ONLY (total 14)



����������	
�����������

�

�

�

�




�

�

	

���������������� ������� ������� ����� ��������������

���������������� � ���

������� 	 ��	
�

������� � 	
�� �

����� � ��

�������������� 
 �!����

"#$%#&$'()*$(+$,$-&+(.(/,'(0%1

�

	�

	�

�

2
�3
4�
�

5
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

6
�
�7
��
��
��
��
��
��

5
��
8
�

2
��
�
��
��
�

2
��
��
��
9
4�
��
�

��
��
��
��

:�
�
��
�;
��
�

<
�=
>�
�?
��
��

@�
��
�A
��
�

5
��
��
�

B�
�8
�
�

6
�
��
8
���

5
��
�4
8
���

2
�
��
��

�
��
��
���
8
��
�
���

C+DE*FD G#&+0 H*F.*+0,I*

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 9 of 17



����������	
�����������

������ � ��

������������� 	
 	���

������������������������� � ��

����� � ��

��������� � ��

������������� � ��

�������� � ��

 �����!��� � ��

"�#$��%���� � ��

&����'��� � ��

������ � ��

(����� � ��

�������� � ��

��������� � ��

������ � ��

)����������������������� � ��

*+,-./, 012+3 4./5.+367.

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 10 of 17



������������	�
��������
����������
�����
�������	�������������

����� �!"#!#� $�% &�"#'� �(%�)*!"#+ * %�,

�����
��-�./��0������-��

�

1�

��

��

0�

�
�2
��
��
��
�2
333

4
��
�2

�
�

5
�6
�
�
�

�2

�
�

0�

�
�2
��
��
2

��

0�
��2�������2
�� �� �73/.8

4���2
�� � �3798

5�6�
�� . 73�18

�2
�� : 1�39�8

0�
��2����2
�� �; �/3�18

<#�=#'�&(%���� �>(?�(&�@("A&(=��#�B �B')C�,

D%�& "� E#'%� @ "F %�(G 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 11 of 17

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Mineral Springs & Unincorporated Union County Only (76 responses)



����������	
�����������

�

�

��

��

��

��

��

��

���������������� ������� ������� ����� ��������������

���������������� �� ������

������� � ��
��

�������  ������

����� 	 !����

�������������� �
 ������

"#$%#&$'()*$(+$,$-&+(.(/,'(0%1

�

��

 �


�

��

2
�3
4�
�

5
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

6
�
�7
��
��
��
��
��
��

5
��
8
�

2
��
�
��
��
�

2
��
��
��
9
4�
��
�

��
��
��
��

:�
�
��
�;
��
�

<
�=
>�
�?
��
��

@�
��
�A
��
�

5
��
��
�

B�
�8
�
�

6
�
��
8
���

5
��
�4
8
���

2
�
��
��

�
��
��
���
8
��
�
���

C+DE*FD G#&+0 H*F.*+0,I*

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 12 of 17



����������	
�����������

������ � ��

������������� �� ������

���������� ��������!�"� # 
� ���$��

���%� � ��

������ �� � ��

�����#�!����� � ��

� ������ � ��

&�����'��� � ��

(�)*#�+���� � ��

,����-��� � ��

������ � ��

.��%�� � ��

����%��� � ��

�����%��� � ��

���� � � ��

/���� ��%���������!�"� # � ��

0123452 67819 :45;419<=4

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 13 of 17



Waxhaw Parkway: Additional Considerations 

 
As we studied the the various possible Waxhaw Parkway CTP alignments, it became clearer than 

ever that the Waxhaw Parkway will serve as a facilitator and catalyst for massive and 

unsustainable development south of NC Highway 75 extending miles into the rural countryside.  

 

First, the proposed new alignment feeds directly into a 229-acre tract south of NC Highway 75 

that was recently annexed into Waxhaw and rezoned from low-density Union County RA-40 and 

R-20 to ultra-high-density Waxhaw zoning. With its new zoning, this property has the potential 

for 1,000-1,200 more houses and townhouses. The rezoning was approved on January 23, 2023 

which was after the new Waxhaw Parkway alignment was proposed. 

 

In addition, there is another larger tract – 1,259 acres – south of NC Highway 75 just east of that 

229-acre tract and contiguous to it. There is currently a proposal – not yet approved – for a 

massive high-density subdivision on that property that could contain well over 4,000 houses. 

That property has been “on the radar” for many years, and the current Waxhaw Parkway 

alignment feeds directly into it. One aspect of the proposed new alignment of the Waxhaw 

Parkway that appeared to be a benefit to Mineral Springs was that it would be moved 

approximately 2,000 feet further away from Mineral Springs and away from that 1,259-acre 

tract. But the current proposal for that property shows a “southeast extension” of the Waxhaw 

Parkway that would intersect NC Highway right at the Mineral Springs boundary – even closer 

to Mineral Springs than where the current alignment of the Waxhaw Parkway crosses NC 

Highway 75. That proposed extension is shown as a solid blue line on the map on the next page. 

 

Waxhaw Meadows Plantation: Both the present and the proposed new routes of the Waxhaw 

Parkway pass through the Waxhaw Meadows Plantation subdivision, one of the most unique 

conservation-oriented neighborhoods in all of western Union County. The existing route of the 

Parkway is extremely detrimental to that neighborhood, likely requiring the removal of two to 

four homes and the splitting of several large parcels into smaller pieces. The proposed new 

alignment initially seemed slightly better because it would impact fewer properties, but already 

another home has been built which is directly in the path of the proposed new alignment. 

Currently only one large tract – the former Storybook Farm – is located in Mineral Springs. 

However, it is likely that the entire neighborhood will be annexed into Mineral Springs very 

soon, and it is the preference of ALL residents of Waxhaw Meadows Plantation that the Waxhaw 

Parkway avoid their neighborhood entirely. 

 

It is becoming increasingly evident that the Waxhaw Parkway has the potential to catalyze a level 

of high-density urban development that is completely out of keeping with current land uses in the 

area, development that will not only destroy the quality of life for hundreds of existing residents 

but that will also generate so much additional traffic that it will cancel out any mobility that the 

Parkway might provide to the area. It would be prudent to consider eliminating the northeast and 

southeast legs of the Waxhaw Parkway from the CTP and explore solutions such as targeted road 

widenings, traffic-flow modifications including one-way streets, and dispersal of traffic more 

broadly. Building roads that catalyze excessive development in remote rural areas – thereby 

generating congestion far in excess of any transportation benefit they provide – is increasingly 

being shown not to be a responsible practice. 

 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 14 of 17



Proposed 
Amendment #2 
(Southern Leg)

• Shift existing CTP 
alignment (orange) 
to new alignment 
(green)

• Requested by 
Waxhaw to 
continue corridor 
south of NC 75

• Does not affect 
Mineral Springs 
neighborhoods

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 15 of 17

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Pencil

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Call Out
Prop. SEExt.



 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 

RESOLUTION ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE  

TRANSPORTATION PLAN INVOLVING THE WAXHAW PARKWAY  

 

R-2023-03 

 

WHEREAS, the Waxhaw Parkway is a future road connecting NC 16 and NC 75 northeast 
of Waxhaw in western Union County; and 

WHEREAS, this road is designated as a boulevard and included in the current Charlotte 
Regional Transportation Planning Organization (CRTPO) Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan (CTP); and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) recently complet-
ed a feasibility and cost estimation study for the proposed road, which recommended a 
new alignment; and 

WHEREAS, the current Waxhaw Parkway traverses Mineral Springs, Waxhaw, and unin-
corporated Union County; and 

WHEREAS, the CTP amendment process requires public input and endorsement of 
changes by affected jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, the governing boards of Union County, Waxhaw, and Mineral Springs all en-
dorsed beginning the public input process and at its July 19, 2023 regular meeting the 
CRTPO board approved a public comment period from July 20, 2023 through August 20, 
2023; and 

WHEREAS, Union County developed and publicized an online survey seeking public input 
on the CTP amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Waxhaw hosted a public information meeting at the Waxhaw Po-
lice Department on August 3, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, 409 residents from throughout Union County including 258 from the town of 
Waxhaw, 14 from the town of Mineral Springs, and 62 from unincorporated Union County 
responded to the online survey; and 

WHEREAS, the Waxhaw respondents preferred the proposed new alignment over the ex-
isting alignment by a margin of 50.12% to 31.78%; and 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs respondents (albeit a small sample size) were exactly 50-
50 split on their preferred alignment; and 

WHEREAS, the combined residents of Mineral Springs and unincorporated Union County 
preferred the proposed new alignment over the existing alignment by a narrow margin of 
44.42% to 43.42%; and 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 16 of 17



 

 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs residents favored not building the Waxhaw Parkway by a 
2:1 margin; and 

WHEREAS, the combined residents of Mineral Springs and unincorporated Union County 
favored not building the Waxhaw Parkway by a margin of 46.05% to 43.42%; and 

WHEREAS, excessive high-density development in the area is already placing additional 
environmental, mobility, economic, and quality-of-life burdens on the region and its resi-
dents; and 

WHEREAS, several recent development proposals strongly indicate that the Waxhaw 
Parkway, particularly the northeastern and southern legs, will facilitate and catalyze ram-
pant undesirable and unsustainable high-density development far out into the rural coun-
tryside which will lead to increased burdens on residents including additional congestion 
due to the “induced demand” phenomenon; and 

WHEREAS, on the part of Mineral Springs and unincorporated Union County residents 
there is no strong preference for one proposed route over the other and there is a moder-
ate preference for not building the Waxhaw Parkway; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mineral Springs Town Council endorses 
neither the existing alignment nor the proposed new alignment for the northeastern and 
southern legs of the Waxhaw Parkway and takes a neutral position on the CTP amend-
ment; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mineral Springs Town Council requests that 
CRTPO and NCDOT consider eliminating the northeastern and southern legs of the Wax-
haw Parkway from the Comprehensive Transportation Plan and instead seek alternate 
mobility solutions for the region including targeted widening of existing roads, modification 
of traffic flow patterns including the possible introduction of one-way streets, and encour-
aging the dispersal of traffic over a more widespread network of roads. 

 
Adopted this 14th day of September, 2023.  

 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Vicky A. Brooks, Town Clerk 
 
Red text is optional. The resolution is only required to endorse one route over the other (or 
neither), but responses from residents of Mineral Springs and unincorporated Union Coun-
ty reflect a fairly strong desire to eliminate the eastern legs of the Waxhaw Parkway and 
seek less-intrusive transportation solutions that won’t promote as much new development. 

 Waxhaw Parkway CTP Amendment Agenda Item Page 17 of 17



 

  

 

 

MEMO 
 

To: Town Council 
From: Vicky Brooks 
Date: September 6, 2023 
Re: Agenda Items 7 Consideration of Adopting a Statement of Consistency and/or Inconsistency 

and Ordinance-2023-02 on the Proposed Text Amendments (TA-2023-02 
and TA-2023-03) 

 

The town received a text amendment petition as found in TA-2023-02.  The planning board reviewed 
the request on August 22, 2023 and determined it was not consistent with the Mineral Springs 
Comprehensive Plan because it was not clear and concise and recommended that the town council 
not approve the text amendment. 

Town staff prepared a modified version of the applicants proposed text amendment as found in TA-
2023-03 to make the amendment clear and concise.  The planning board reviewed the proposed text 
amendment on August 22, 2023 and after making a few modifications, they recommended that the 
town council approve the text amendments. 

In the agenda packet, you will find the following for TA-2023-02: 

1. Petition for Text Amendment. 

2. Table showing the proposed text amendment as requested by the applicant. 

3. A Statement of Inconsistency from the planning board. 

4. A draft Statement of Consistency for the council to consider adopting. 

5. A draft Statement of Inconsistency for the council to consider adopting. 

For TA-2023-03: 

1. Table/Exhibit 1 showing the proposed text amendments as drafted by staff/planning board. 

2. A Statement of Consistency from the planning board. 

3. A draft Statement of Consistency for the council to consider adopting. 

4. A draft Statement of Inconsistency for the council to consider adopting. 

Additionally, there is a draft Ordinance (O-2023-02) for the council to consider adopting either TA-
2023-02 or TA-2023-03. 

Both TA-2023-02 and TA-2023-03 serve the same purpose, which is to allow a shipping container to 
be used for storage on a temporary basis; it is up to the council to choose between the two of them, it 
is one or the other, not both.  TA-2023-02 is just not clear and concise enough to set the proper set of 
guidelines to regulate the temporary use of a shipping container.  TA-2023-03 sets specific guidelines 
for when, where, and for how long a shipping container can be used for storage. 

The council has been given a Draft Statement of Consistency and a Draft Statement of Inconsistency 
for both TA-2023-02 and TA-2023-03, so that you are prepared for both.    

Town of Mineral Springs  
Town Clerk / Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AS 
REQUESTED BY AN APPLICANT  

REVIEWED AND NOT RECOMMENDED FOR TOWN COUNCIL APPROVAL 
BY THE PLANNING BOARD ON 08/22/23 

TA-2023-02 
Article Section # Subsection # Current Language Amendment 
4 4.4.2.2 H Under no circumstances 

may a vehicle, tractor 
trailer, manufactured 
home, recreational 
vehicle, POD or similar 
container be uses as an 
accessory structure, 
except for bona fide farms. 

Under no circumstances may a 
vehicle, tractor trailer, 
manufactured home, recreational 
vehicle, POD or similar container 
be uses as an accessory structure, 
except for bona fide farms.,with the 
exception of a POD or storage 
container placed on property 
temporarily for storage of building 
supplies for home.  Storage 
container to be removed once build 
is completed or prior to completion.



TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
PLANNING BOARD 

 

 
 

STATEMENT OF INCONSISTENCY 
 
 

Mineral Springs Development Ordinance 
Article 4 

 

 
In reference to the proposed text amendments to Article 4 of the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, as described in TA-2023-02. 

 
The Mineral Springs Planning Board hereby declares the proposed text amendments 
are "inconsistent' with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 
2022 based on: 

 
1.  The proposed amendments to Article 4 is inconsistent with the adopted Mineral 

Springs Development Ordinance because it is not clear and concise. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED by the Mineral Springs Planning Board to the Mineral Springs Town 
Council on this the 22nd day of August, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attest: 



 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
PLANNING BOARD 

 
STATEMENT OF INCONSISTENCY  

 
Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   

Article 4  
 

In reference to the proposed text amendments to Article 4 of the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, as described in TA-2023-02. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares that the proposed text amendments 
are “inconsistent” with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 
2022 based on: 
 

1. The proposed amendments to Article 4 is inconsistent with the adopted Mineral 
Springs Development Ordinance, because it is not clear and concise.   
 

 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 14th day of September, 
2023. 

 

 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 

 

       
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 



 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY  

 
Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   

Article 4  
 

In reference to the proposed text amendments to Article 4 of the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, as described in TA-2023-02. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendments are 
“consistent” with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 2022 
based on: 
 

1. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with the “Implementation” of the Mineral 
Springs Comprehensive Plan to have ongoing updates to the Town’s 
development regulations; and 

2. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with enhancing the Quality of Life by 
offering a temporary use of a container for storage of building supplies/tools 
during construction of new residential or renovations on a damaged principal 
structure thereby keeping the supplies less visible and protected.   
 

 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 14th day of September, 
2023. 

 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 

 

       
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AS 
RECOMMENDED BY STAFF 

 REVIEWED AND RECOMMENDED FOR TOWN COUNCIL APPROVAL 
 BY THE PLANNING BOARD ON 08/22/23 

TA-2023-03 
4 4.4.4.2 H Under no circumstances 

may a vehicle, tractor 
trailer, manufactured 
home, recreational 
vehicle, POD or similar 
container be uses as an 
accessory structure, 
except for bona fide farms.

Under no circumstances may a 
vehicle, tractor trailer, 
manufactured home, recreational 
vehicle, POD or similar container 
be uses as an accessory structure, 
except for bona fide farms or as 
specified in Section 4.4.8.5 (G).   

4 4.4.8.5 G Title: Promotional 
Activities for Businesses 
and description

Temporary Construction Portable 
Storage Containers – new 
language shown as Exhibit 1

4 4.4.8.5 G Promotional Activities for 
Businesses

H.  Promotional Activities for 
Businesses 

4  4.4.8.5 H Yard Sales / Garage Sales 
/ Estate Sales and 
description

I. Yard Sales / Garage Sales / 
Estate Sales and description 

4 4.4.8.5 I Mobile Food Vending 
Units (Food Trucks) and 
description

J. Mobile Food Vending Units 
(Food Trucks) and description 

4 Permitted 
Uses 

Table 4.1 Mobile Food Vending 
Units (Food Trucks) as a 
Permitted Use in TC, NB, 
GB, LI, & MU with 
Supplemental Regulations 
in 4.4.8.5 (I)

Mobile Food Vending Units (Food 
Trucks) as a Permitted Use in TC, 
NB, GB, LI, & MU with 
Supplemental Regulations in 
4.4.8.5 (J) 



 

EXHIBIT 1 

STRIKE-THROUGH = DELETIONS 

RED PRINT = ADDITIONS 

 
4.4.8.5 TEMPORARY USES (ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL) 
Temporary structures and uses are permitted subject to this Section and all other provisions 
of this Ordinance.  No portion of the temporary use may be located within the public street 
right-of-way.  Temporary uses shall present proof of property owner approval prior to the 
issuance of a permit.  The site shall have adequate parking for the temporary use in addition 
to parking for any permanent use located on the property. The following temporary structures 
and uses shall be permitted subject to the issuance of a Zoning Permit for a temporary use 
by the Administrator: 
 
A.  Temporary Emergency Dwellings 
 
B.  Temporary Construction Offices 
 
C. Temporary Seasonal Sale of Agricultural Products 
 
D.  Temporary Non-profit Events 
 
E.  Temporary Residential Development Sales Offices 
 
F.   Temporary Construction Residence 

shall a temporary use permit be valid at the same location for a continuous period of 
greater than 18 months. 

G. Temporary Construction Portable Storage Containers 

  Portable storage containers are subject to the following supplemental regulations: 
1. Temporary portable storage containers are permitted with a valid new residential 

(principal structure) zoning permit and Union County building/construction permit for 
the subject property for a maximum period of not to exceed six (6) months, which 
may be renewed provided that the construction has proceeded in a diligent 
manner, as determined by the administrator.  The container shall be removed prior to 
obtaining a Certificate of Zoning Compliance.   

2. Temporary portable containers are permitted with a valid zoning permit and Union 
County building/construction permit for the subject property for a maximum period of 
time not to exceed six (6) months if the principal residential structure on the subject 
lot has been substantially damaged by a disaster (natural or manmade).  The 
administrator is authorized to grant time extensions of otherwise applicable portable 
storage container time limits.  The container shall be removed when repairs are 
completed or the property will be subject to violations. 



 

3. An approved Temporary Use Permit must be obtained from the town. 
4. No more than 1 container may be located on any lot. 
5. Containers in residential districts may not exceed 20 feet in length, 8 feet in width, 

and 8.5 in height on lots of 2 acres or less and 40 feet in length, 8 feet in width, and 
8.5 feet in height on lots of 2 acres or more.  Containers in nonresidential districts may 
not exceed 40 feet in length, 8 feet in width, and 8.5 feet in height regardless of lot 
size.   

6. Containers must comply with all setback requirements that apply to principal 
buildings. 

7. Containers may not be placed or located on a required parking space, circulation 
aisle/lane, or fire access lane.  

8. Vertical stacking of containers and stacking of any other materials or merchandise on 
top of any portable storage container is prohibited.  No running gear or transport 
trailer may be left underneath any portable storage container.  

9. Containers are prohibited within landscape areas, required open spaces, stormwater 
basins, or any other location that may cause hazardous conditions.    

H G. Promotional Activities for Businesses 
 
I H.  Yard Sales / Garage Sales / Estate Sales 
 
J I. Mobile Food Vending Units (Food Trucks)…  

 
 



TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
PLANNING BOARD 

 

 
 

STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY 
 
 

Mineral Springs Development Ordinance 
Article 4 

 

 

In reference to the proposed text amendments to Article 4 of the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, as described in TA-2023-03. 

 
The Mineral Springs Planning Board hereby declares the proposed text amendments 
are "consistent” with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 
2022 based on: 

 
1.  The amendments to Article 4 identifies with the "Implementation" of the Mineral 

Springs Comprehensive Plan to have ongoing updates to the Town's 
development regulations; and 

 
2.  The amendments to Article 4 identifies with enhancing the Quality of Life by 

offering a temporary use of a container for storage of building supplies/tools 
during construction of new residential, commercial, or renovations on a damaged 
principal structure thereby keeping the supplies less visible and protected. 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDED by the Mineral Springs Planning Board to the Mineral Springs Town 
Council on this the 22nd day of August, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attest: 



 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY  

 
Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   

Article 4  
 

In reference to the proposed text amendments to Article 4 of the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, as described in TA-2023-03. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares that the proposed text amendments 
are “consistent” with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 2022 
based on: 
 

1. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with the “Implementation” of the Mineral 
Springs Comprehensive Plan to have ongoing updates to the Town’s 
development regulations; and 
 

2. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with enhancing the Quality of Life by 
offering a temporary use of a container for storage of building supplies/tools 
during construction of new residential, commercial, or renovations on a damaged 
principal structure thereby keeping the supplies less visible and protected.   
 

 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 14th day of September, 
2023. 

 

 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 

 

       
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 



 

 

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
STATEMENT INCONSISTENCY  

 
Mineral Springs Development Ordinance   

Article 4  
 

In reference to the proposed text amendments to Article 4 of the Mineral Springs 
Development Ordinance, as described in TA-2023-03. 

The Mineral Springs Town Council hereby declares the proposed text amendments are 
“inconsistent” with the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan adopted May 12, 2022 
based on: 
 

1. The proposed amendments to Article 4 identifies negatively with Goal 3 – 
Enhance Quality of Life by not maintaining the development regulations that 
preserve scenic views and rural landscapes.   
 

 
ADOPTED by the Mineral Springs Town Council on this the 14th day of September, 
2023. 

 

 

              
 Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 

 

Attest: 

 

       
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 



 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF ARTICLE 4 OF THE 

MINERAL SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  
O-2023-02 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs maintains an ordinance concerning numerous 
development regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statutes 160D-601; 160D-604, and Article 3, Section 
3.10.1 of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, the Mineral Springs Town Council 
may amend its development regulations after holding a public hearing and after the Mineral 
Springs Planning Board has had the opportunity to review, comment, and make a 
recommendation to the Town Council regarding the amendment as well as whether the 
same is consistent with any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and any other 
officially adopted plan that is applicable; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board reviewed the proposed amendments at a 
regular meeting on August 22, 2023, held in accordance with law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Planning Board recommended in a vote of 6 to 0 on 
August 22, 2023, that the Mineral Springs Town Council adopt the proposed amendments 
based on implementation of ongoing updates to the town’s development regulations and 
enhancing the quality of life in the Mineral Springs Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with NC General Statute 160D-601 and the provisions set forth 
in Article 3, Section 3.10.1 of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, the Town 
Council duly advertised and held a public hearing to consider the proposed amendments; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the written recommendation of the Mineral Springs Planning 
Board, the proposed amendments, conducting a public hearing on September 14, 2023, 
and careful review, the Town Council determines that: 
 

1. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with the “Implementation” of the Mineral 
Springs Comprehensive Plan to have ongoing updates to the Town’s development 
regulations; and 
 

2. The amendments to Article 4 identifies with enhancing the Quality of Life by offering a 
temporary use of a container for storage of building supplies/tools during construction 
of new residential, commercial, or renovations on a damaged principal structure 
thereby keeping the supplies less visible and protected.   

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MINERAL SPRINGS, NORTH 
CAROLINA THAT: 
 
Section 1. That this Town Council does hereby adopt the proposed amendments as 



 

 

outlined in TA-2023-02 or TA-2023-03 attached hereto. 
 
Section 2. That if any section, subsection, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any 

reason, held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance; and 

 
Section 3.  That all ordinances and clauses of ordinance in conflict herewith be and are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 4. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
 
ADOPTED this 14th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 

              
       Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
        
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
Agenda Item

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
#___

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Typewritten text
9/14/2023

msncmayor@yahoo.com
Rectangle



Agenda Item 

#___ 
9/14/2023 TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING UNION COUNTY  

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 

 

R-2023-04  

 

 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 160A-461 of the General Statutes of 
North Carolina, the Town of Mineral Springs is authorized to enter into contracts or 
agreements with other units of local government to execute any undertaking; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs, Union County, and other municipalities within 
Union County have developed a Union County Emergency Operations Plan ("EOP") 
which is a multi-disciplined, all-hazards plan that establishes a comprehensive framework 
for the management of major emergencies and disasters within the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs wishes to enter into an updated EOP with Union 
County and other entities to continue to provide leadership and support for emergency 
operations within Union County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Mineral 
Springs, North Carolina at its regularly assembled meeting of September 14, 2023, that 
the Council hereby approves the Union County Emergency Operations Plan, which is 
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. 
 
Adopted this 14th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Frederick Becker III, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 


	091423_tca
	081023_tcmd
	230914_County_Tax_Report_Agenda_Item
	Finance_Report_2306_MSPDF
	230914_R-2023-03_Waxhaw_Parkway_CTP_Final_Resolution
	230914_Waxhaw_Parkway_CTP_Memo.pdf (p.1)
	Alignments_Previous_PP.pdf (p.2)
	Alignments_Southern_Previous_PP.pdf (p.3)
	Survey_Result_Discussion.pdf (p.4)
	Survey_Q_1-3-5_ALL.pdf (p.5-7)
	Survey_Q_1-3-5_MS_ONLY.pdf (p.8-10)
	Survey_Q_1-3-5_MS_UNINC_ONLY.pdf (p.11-13)
	Development_Catalyst_Discussion.pdf (p.14)
	Alignments_Southern_with_East_Leg.pdf (p.15)
	R2023-03_Waxhaw_Parkway_Final_CTP_Resolution.pdf (p.16-17)

	230914_Waxhaw_Meadows_Petition_AGENDA_ITEM
	230914_County_Tax_Charge_Agenda_Item
	230914_R-2023-04_Union_Co_EOP_Resolution_AGENDA_ITEM
	091423 MEMO to tc text amendments
	TA2023-02 documents
	TA-2023-03 documents

